

Notes of JFU CPA, Tax Advisors, and Digital Tools are prepared for sharing our thoughts on problems encountered in the course of our practice. Subscription is free. Questions and comments are welcome; feel free to write to the Editor, JFU Notes, enquiries@jfuconsultants.com









Strategic Analysis and Game Plan for HSBC's Proposed Privatization of Hang Seng Bank with PONDARA®

Source: JFU | Digital Tools

13 October 2025

Authors

Joseph Fu | Partner (Tax and Risk)
Dominic Fu | Partner (Audit and Technology)
Christopher Fu | Partner (Private Equity and M&A)

This Note is a strategic analysis of the proposed privatization of Hang Seng Bank Limited (Hang Seng) by its majority shareholder, HSBC Holdings plc (HSBC), and presents a game plan addressing two critical phases: securing shareholder approval for the transaction and managing the complex internal integration that follows.

The core objective of the proposal is to fully integrate Hang Seng, simplifying HSBC's corporate structure and solidifying leadership in the Hong Kong market. The proposal offers minority shareholders a substantial premium, a key factor in the Noncooperative Game Theory (NCGT) analysis of the shareholder vote.

Looking ahead, we also introduce in our analysis the concept of an 'internal game' as a suggested framework to align internal stakeholders and foster the cooperation necessary to realize the full value of the integration.

Our analysis is based exclusively on publicly available information. While we have strived to provide a thorough and insightful review, we believe the analysis could be further enhanced with the invaluable perspectives and proprietary data accessible only to the management of HSBC and Hang Seng.

We hope you will find this Note informative. Feel free to contact us if you have any comments or questions.

HSBC's Proposed Privatization of Hang Seng Bank Strategic Analysis and Post Transaction Integration Game Plan

Table of Contents

- 1. Executive Summary
- 2. Operational Narrative: HSBC Holdings plc
- 3. Operational Narrative: Hang Seng Bank Limited
- 4. The Proposed Privatisation of Hang Seng Bank
- 5. NCGT Strategic Analysis: Post-Privatisation Operation
- 6. Post-Privatisation Business Profile & Structural Implications
- 7. PEST Analysis: Hong Kong Macro-Environment
- 8. Porter's Five Forces: Hong Kong Banking Industry Post-Privatisation
- 9. SWOT Analysis: Strengths of the Integrated Entity
- 10. SWOT Analysis: Weaknesses of the Integrated Entity
- 11. SWOT Analysis: Opportunities for the Integrated Entity
- 12. SWOT Analysis: Threats Facing the Integrated Entity
- 13. NCGT Analysis: The Internal Game for Post-Privatisation Growth
- 14. Strategic Thoughts & Future Outlook

1. Executive Summary

The strategic rationale of the proposal is compelling: the integrated entity will leverage a powerful dual-brand strategy, combining HSBC's global reach with Hang Seng's deep local penetration. Analysis of the post-privatization landscape indicates a formidable competitive position, characterized by unmatched market share and significant synergy potential (Strengths). However, this is balanced by considerable integration complexity and increased concentration risk in the Hong Kong market (Weaknesses). The macro-environment presents opportunities for leadership in the Greater Bay Area (GBA), while the competitive landscape (Porter's Five Forces) remains intense, with threats from agile FinTech rivals and potential regulatory scrutiny.

To capitalize on this opportunity and mitigate risks, this Note recommends several key strategic actions: the immediate formation of a dedicated Integration Management Office (IMO), the formalization of a dual-brand charter to prevent market confusion, a proactive stakeholder communication plan, and the development of a unified technology roadmap to drive long-term efficiency and innovation. Executed effectively, this privatization will create a more agile, efficient, and dominant player in Asian banking.

2. Operational Narrative: HSBC Holdings plc

HSBC Holdings plc is one of the world's largest banking and financial services organizations, headquartered in London, with operations in 57 countries and territories and assets of US\$3,214 billion as of 30 June 2025. The Group's strategy is centered on 'Opening up a world of opportunity', focusing on generating strategic growth and delivering attractive shareholder returns.

Core Business Operations & Structure:

HSBC operates through four global businesses effective from 1 January 2025: Hong Kong, UK, Corporate and Institutional Banking (CIB), and International Wealth and Premier Banking (IWPB). This structure reflects a strategic pivot towards its most profitable markets and segments, particularly in Asia. The group's stated ambition is to become the 'world's most trusted bank globally'.

Financial Performance Summary (as of 1H 2025):

Metric	1H 2025 Performance
Profit Before Tax	\$15.8 billion
Revenue	\$34.1 billion
Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) Ratio	14.6%
Return on Average Tangible Equity (RoTE)	14.7%
Second Interim Dividend per Share	\$0.10

Strategic Direction:

HSBC is actively 'Reshaping the Group for growth' by simplifying its organizational structure, divesting non-core assets (e.g., custody business in Germany, business in Uruguay), and reinvesting in priority areas. Key growth initiatives include enhancing Wholesale Transaction Banking, expanding international business, and building its Wealth franchise, particularly in Asia. A major strategic priority is to grow its presence in Hong Kong, which provides the primary context for the proposed privatization of Hang Seng Bank.

3. Operational Narrative: Hang Seng Bank Limited

Founded in 1933, Hang Seng Bank Limited is a principal member of the HSBC Group and is widely recognized as the leading domestic bank in Hong Kong. It serves nearly 4 million customers and operates a network of over 250 service outlets in Hong Kong, alongside a strategic network in mainland China. As of 30 June 2025, HSBC holds approximately 63.04% of Hang Seng's ordinary shares.

Core Business Operations & Market Position:

Hang Seng's operations are deeply integrated into the Hong Kong economy. Its primary business segments include Hong Kong Business (comprising Retail Banking & Wealth and Commercial Banking), Insurance Manufacturing and Asset Management, and Markets and Securities Services. The bank has demonstrated resilience in a challenging macroeconomic environment by focusing on diversifying its revenue streams, with fee and other income rising to 31.6% of total revenue in 1H 2025.

Financial Performance Summary (as of 1H 2025):

Metric	1H 2025 Performance
Profit Before Tax	HK\$8,097 million
Net Operating Income	HK\$20,975 million
Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) Ratio	21.3%
Earnings per Share	HK\$3.34
Second Interim Dividend per Share	HK\$1.30

Strategic Direction:

The bank's strategy focuses on building a 'future-ready business' by investing in talent and digital capabilities. Key priorities include expanding its customer base, particularly in the affluent segment, and capturing opportunities in the Greater Bay Area through enhanced cross-boundary services. Despite its strong capital base and resilient performance, its operations are strategically intertwined with its parent company, HSBC.

4. The Proposed Privatisation of Hang Seng Bank

HSBC Asia Pacific, a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC Holdings, has proposed the privatization of Hang Seng Bank by way of a scheme of arrangement. The objective is to make Hang Seng Bank a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC Holdings and withdraw its listing from the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Key Terms of the Proposal:

- Scheme Consideration: HK\$155.00 in cash for every Scheme Share held.
- Treatment of Dividends: The 2025 Third Interim Dividend will be paid without deduction. All other dividends with a record date before the scheme's effective date will be deducted from the consideration.
- **Total Value:** The proposal values the entire issued share capital of Hang Seng Bank at approximately HK\$290,305 million, with a cash payment to minority shareholders of approximately HK\$106,156 million.

• **Financial Impact on HSBC:** The proposal is expected to be accretive to earnings per share. It will have an initial negative impact on HSBC's CET1 ratio of approximately 125 basis points. HSBC expects to restore this ratio to its target range (14.0%-14.5%) through organic capital generation and a temporary pause on share buybacks for three quarters.

Offer Premium Analysis:

The Scheme Consideration represents a significant premium over recent trading prices:

Premium Over	Share Price Benchmark	Premium (%)
Last Trading Day Closing Price	HK\$119.00	~30.3%
30-Day Average Closing Price	HK\$116.49	~33.1%
360-Day Average Closing Price	HK\$104.30	~48.6%
Audited NAV (31 Dec 2024)	нк\$90.06	~72.1%
52-Week High Share Price	HK\$123.50	~25.5%

Strategic Rationale for HSBC:

- 1. **Simplification:** Greatly simplify the structure of its Hong Kong operations.
- 2. **Alignment & Investment:** Align economic incentives for HSBC to increase investments in Hang Seng Bank, leveraging both brands.
- 3. **Agility:** Streamline decision-making processes to respond more quickly to market and customer needs.
- 4. **Efficiency:** Enable improved operational risk management, capital efficiency, and operational leverage.

5. NCGT Strategic Analysis: Post-Privatisation Operation

Applying the Noncooperative Game Theory (NCGT) framework allows us to model the privatization proposal as a strategic game with multiple players, rules, and payoffs. This preliminary analysis outlines the structure of the game.

Group Goal

The overarching group goal is: To execute the full privatization of Hang Seng Bank, integrating its operations to unlock synergies, enhance market leadership in Hong Kong, and maximize long-term value for HSBC Holdings, while successfully navigating regulatory approvals and managing stakeholder interests.

Players & Strategic Interdependence

A full analysis requires a defined list of players. However, we can identify the key stakeholder groups whose decisions are interdependent:

- 1. **HSBC Holdings/HSBC Asia Pacific (The Proposer):** Seeks to acquire 100% control at a price that ensures long-term value creation, net of the acquisition cost.
- 2. Hang Seng Minority Shareholders (The Target): Seek to maximize the return on their investment. Their decision to accept or reject the offer depends on their valuation of the bank versus the price offered.
- 3. **Regulatory Bodies (e.g., HKMA, SFC):** Seek to ensure market fairness, financial system stability, and compliance with the Takeovers Code and Companies Ordinance. Their approval is a critical 'move' in the game.

The strategic interdependence is clear: HSBC's success depends entirely on the collective decisions of the minority shareholders and the non-objection of regulators. Shareholders' payoff is directly determined by HSBC's offer and their own vote.

Rules, Outcomes, and Payoffs

The 'rules' are defined by the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and the Companies Ordinance:

- **Voting Threshold:** The scheme must be approved by at least 75% of the votes of disinterested shareholders present and voting. The votes cast against must not exceed 10% of all disinterested shares.
- **Court Sanction:** The scheme must be sanctioned by the High Court.

Potential Outcomes & Payoffs:

A simplified payoff matrix illustrates the strategic problem:

	Minority Shareholders Vote 'YES'	Minority Shareholders Vote 'NO'
HYKE IPTOCOORS	Outcome 1: Success. Payoff: Synergies + Full Control - Acquisition Cost.	Outcome 2: Failure. Payoff: Status Quo + Reputational Cost.
Minority Shareholders	Payoff: HK\$155.00 Cash Premium.	Payoff: Status Quo (Stock price likely falls post-failure).

Preliminary Strategic Deliberation

From an NCGT perspective, HSBC's strategy is to present an offer so attractive that voting 'YES' becomes a **strictly dominant strategy** for a sufficient majority of minority shareholders. The significant premium offered (30%-70% over various benchmarks) is the primary tool to achieve this.

For a minority shareholder, rejecting a high-premium offer is risky; if the deal fails, the share price is likely to revert to its pre-offer level, resulting in a direct financial loss compared to the offered price.

The game involves **imperfect information**, as shareholders do not know for certain how others will vote. However, by making the offer public and highly attractive, HSBC aims to create a **common knowledge** belief that accepting the offer is the rational choice, encouraging coordination among shareholders to vote 'YES'. The high premium is designed to overcome individual valuation differences and secure the required majority.

Next Steps: To deepen this analysis, we must identify the specific individuals or groups within the 'players' category (e.g., specific institutional investors, key regulators) and model their unique objectives and potential strategies.

6. Post-Privatisation Business Profile & Structural Implications

A full privatization of Hang Seng Bank will fundamentally reshape HSBC's business profile in its most critical market, creating a more integrated and powerful entity. The implications span corporate structure, operations, and financial composition.

1. Revised Corporate & Legal Structure:

- **Simplification:** Hang Seng Bank will transition from a 63.04%-owned, publicly listed subsidiary to a wholly-owned private entity under HSBC Holdings. This eliminates the complexities and costs associated with a public listing, including separate reporting obligations and the need to manage minority shareholder interests.
- Governance: Governance will be streamlined. Decision-making authority becomes centralized within the HSBC Group, allowing for faster implementation of strategic initiatives without the need for a separate board approval process at Hang Seng that must consider minority interests.

2. Integrated Business Operations & Value Chain:

- Dual-Brand Strategy: The most likely operational model is a refined dual-brand strategy
 where HSBC continues to focus on its international, corporate, and high-net-worth client
 base, while Hang Seng Bank leverages its deep local roots and brand trust to dominate the
 domestic retail and SME segments.
- Value Chain Synergies: Significant value can be unlocked by integrating support functions.
 This includes consolidating back-office operations like IT infrastructure, human resources, compliance, and risk management to eliminate redundancies and achieve economies of scale.
- Revenue Synergies: Enhanced cross-selling becomes a primary driver of growth. HSBC's
 global investment products, insurance solutions, and corporate banking services can be
 offered to Hang Seng's extensive local customer base, and vice-versa.

3. Financial Profile Implications:

- Consolidated Balance Sheet: HSBC will gain full control over Hang Seng's substantial and low-cost deposit base, strengthening the group's overall liquidity position. Hang Seng's strong capital base (21.3% CET1 ratio) will be fully consolidated, though the initial acquisition will cause a temporary 125 basis point dip in HSBC's group CET1 ratio.
- **Earning Potential:** The transaction is expected to be immediately accretive to earnings per share. Full ownership means HSBC captures 100% of Hang Seng's profits, enhancing the group's overall profitability and return on tangible equity (RoTE) in the long run. Capital can be allocated more efficiently across the entire Hong Kong operation to fund the most promising growth areas.

7. PEST Analysis: Hong Kong Macro-Environment

The success of the integrated entity is contingent upon the macro-environmental factors shaping the Hong Kong market.

- Political: Hong Kong's status as a Special Administrative Region of China presents a unique
 political landscape. While its robust legal system and established regulatory frameworks are
 strengths, the business environment is sensitive to geopolitical tensions between China and
 the West. The ongoing integration with the Greater Bay Area (GBA) is a major policy-driven
 opportunity.
- Economic: As a major international financial center, Hong Kong's economy is highly open
 and susceptible to global economic trends, particularly US interest rate policies (due to the
 HKD peg) and the economic health of Mainland China. Key domestic factors include the
 property market's performance, local consumption trends, and the city's ability to attract
 international talent and capital.
- **Social:** Hong Kong has an aging population and significant wealth concentration, driving strong demand for wealth management, insurance, and retirement planning services. Consumers are highly digitally savvy, leading to widespread adoption of mobile banking and digital payments. There is also a growing emphasis on Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) principles among investors and customers.
- Technological: The city is a competitive FinTech hub. The introduction of virtual banks has
 increased competition and accelerated digital innovation across the industry. Continued
 investment in cybersecurity, artificial intelligence (AI) for personalization and risk
 management, and data analytics is no longer optional but essential for maintaining market
 leadership.

8. Porter's Five Forces: Hong Kong Banking Industry Post-Privatisation

The privatization will meaningfully alter the competitive dynamics of the Hong Kong banking sector.

Force	Intensity & Analysis
Competitive Rivalry	High. The market is mature and dominated by established players like HSBC/Hang Seng, Bank of China (HK), and Standard Chartered. This move intensifies rivalry by creating a more agile and powerful HSBC entity. Competitors will be forced to respond, potentially through price competition, enhanced service offerings, or their own M&A activities.
Threat of New Entrants	Moderate. While high capital requirements and a stringent regulatory environment create significant barriers to entry for traditional banks, the licensing of eight virtual banks has introduced new, digitally-native competitors. The strengthened market position of the combined HSBC/Hang Seng entity will make it even harder for any new large-scale player to gain a foothold.
Bargaining Power of Buyers	High. Customers have access to a wide range of banking options and are increasingly willing to switch providers for better rates or services. Digitalization has increased price transparency and lowered switching costs. The combined entity's ability to offer a deeply integrated and comprehensive service suite may help to build stickier customer relationships, slightly mitigating this power.
Bargaining Power of Suppliers	Low. For a bank, key suppliers include depositors, capital markets, and technology providers. Hong Kong has a large and stable deposit pool, giving banks significant leverage. While specialized FinTech providers may have some negotiating power, a behemoth like the integrated HSBC has immense buying power and can often develop technology in-house.
Threat of Substitutes	Moderate to High. The threat comes from non-bank players chipping away at profitable niches. FinTech firms offer specialized services in payments (e.g., AlipayHK), remittances, and wealth management (e.g., robo-advisors). While not replacing core banking, these substitutes threaten high-margin revenue streams. Integration allows for faster innovation to compete with these agile players.

9. SWOT Analysis: Strengths of the Integrated Entity

Strength	Description
Dominant Market Position	Unmatched combined market share in deposits, mortgages, and credit cards in Hong Kong, creating a formidable competitive moat.
Complementary Customer Segments	A powerful dual-brand portfolio covering the entire market spectrum, from local retail customers (Hang Seng) to global corporations and high-net-worth individuals (HSBC).
Synergy Potential	Significant opportunities for both cost synergies (consolidating back-office, IT, and administrative functions) and revenue synergies (cross-selling global products to a massive local customer base).
Fortified Financial Base	Full access to Hang Seng's stable, low-cost deposit franchise and robust ecapital position, enhancing the Group's overall financial strength and funding capabilities.

10. SWOT Analysis: Weaknesses of the Integrated Entity

Weakness	Description
Integration Complexity & Risk	Merging two large, established institutions carries significant execution risk, including potential for culture clashes, system migration failures, and disruption to customer service.
Brand Management Challenge	Risk of brand dilution or customer confusion if the dual-brand strategy is not executed with clear differentiation and communication.
Increased Concentration Risk	The move further concentrates HSBC's business and earnings in the Hong Kong market, increasing its sensitivity to local economic and political volatility.
Organizational Inertia	The sheer size of the combined entity could lead to bureaucracy and slower decision-making, potentially hindering its ability to respond to agile FinTech competitors.

11. SWOT Analysis: Opportunities for the Integrated Entity

Opportunity	Description
Greater Bay Area (GBA) Leadership	Use the combined network and capabilities of both brands to establish an undisputed leadership position in capturing cross-boundary banking and wealth management flows in the GBA.
Wealth Management Dominance	Combine HSBC's global wealth solutions and product manufacturing capabilities with Hang Seng's extensive distribution network to create a dominant wealth management platform in Asia.
Accelerated Digital Transformation	Pool resources to invest in a single, best-in-class digital platform, leveraging combined data assets for superior customer insights, personalization, and risk management.
Operational & Capital Efficiency	Streamline operations, optimize the physical branch network, and manage capital more efficiently across the entire Hong Kong business to boost profitability and RoTE.

12. SWOT Analysis: Threats Facing the Integrated Entity

Threat	Description
Scrutiny	The increased market concentration will likely attract close attention from regulators (e.g., HKMA) concerning competition, market conduct, and systemic risk.

Threat	Description
Intensified Competition	Rivals may react aggressively to defend their market share. FinTech firms and virtual banks will continue to target niche segments with innovative, low-cost solutions.
Macroeconomic & Geopolitical Risks	An economic downturn in Hong Kong or Mainland China, or escalating geopolitical tensions, could adversely impact loan growth, credit quality, and investor confidence.
Execution Failure	The primary threat is internal: a failure to effectively manage the integration process and realize the projected synergies could make the high-premium acquisition value-destructive for shareholders.

13. NCGT Analysis: The Internal Game for Post-Privatisation Growth

Following the successful privatization, a new strategic game begins within the integrated entity. This Noncooperative Game Theory (NCGT) analysis models the interactions between key internal functions as they navigate the integration and pursue new growth strategies.

Group Goal

The overarching goal for the internal players is: To successfully integrate operations and strategies to realize projected synergies, accelerate growth in key markets like the GBA, and establish an unassailable, unified market leadership position, thereby maximizing long-term profitability for HSBC Holdings.

The Players & Their Objectives

The game involves internal functions with distinct, sometimes competing, objectives. External forces (Regulators, Competitors, Environment) act as constraints and influencers on the game.

Player (Internal Function)	Core Objective(s)
1. HSBC Global Leadership (CIB & IWPB)	 Drive rapid integration to unlock cost synergies and prove the value of the acquisition Expand the reach of global products (investment, insurance) through Hang Seng's local network Standardize processes and technology onto global HSBC platforms for efficiency and control.
2. Hang Seng Domestic Leadership (Retail & Commercial)	 Preserve the Hang Seng brand identity, customer trust, and operational autonomy Protect existing market share and customer relationships from disruption during integration Ensure new growth initiatives (e.g., GBA) are tailored to local market nuances.

Player (Internal Function)	Core Objective(s)
3. Integration Management Office (IMO)	 Act as a neutral arbiter to achieve the overall Group Goal Develop and enforce a clear integration roadmap, meeting synergy targets on time and on budget Manage conflicts between global and domestic leadership to ensure a smooth transition.
4. Shared Services & Technology Function	 Consolidate IT infrastructure and back-office functions to eliminate redundancies and reduce costs Implement a unified technology platform that supports the dual-brand strategy Minimize operational risk and service disruption during system migrations.

Potential Growth Strategies & Strategic Interdependence

The primary growth strategies are **GBA Expansion** and **Wealth Management Dominance**. The success of these strategies depends on the cooperative or noncooperative moves of the internal players.

Scenario: GBA Wealth Management Product Launch

- HSBC Global Leadership's Strategy: Push for a rapid rollout of a standardized, global HSBC wealth product across the entire integrated network, including all Hang Seng branches.
 Payoff: Fast time-to-market, brand consistency, and control.
- Hang Seng Domestic Leadership's Strategy: Advocate for a customized version of the
 product, co-branded or tailored to the risk appetite and preferences of their local customer
 base. Payoff: Higher local adoption, preservation of brand trust, less risk of customer
 alienation.
- **IMO's Strategy:** Mediate a compromise, perhaps a phased rollout starting with a pilot program in select Hang Seng branches, using data to validate the best approach. **Payoff:** Balanced outcome, risk mitigation, and stakeholder buy-in.
- **Technology Function's Strategy:** Their ability to support either a standardized or customized product depends on the state of platform integration. They may push for the simpler, standardized option to meet deadlines. **Payoff:** Lower implementation complexity and cost.

Strategic Deliberation & Likely Equilibrium

This internal game is not zero-sum. A purely noncooperative approach where each player rigidly pursues their own objectives leads to a poor outcome for all: a stalled integration, confused customers, and missed growth targets, all while competitors (External Players) capitalize on the internal disarray.

- A **strictly dominant strategy** for any single player (e.g., HSBC forcing full standardization) would likely fail due to passive resistance from other players, leading to a suboptimal outcome (e.g., low product sales in Hang Seng channels).
- The most likely Nash Equilibrium is a state of 'structured cooperation' arbitrated by a strong IMO. In this equilibrium:

- 1. HSBC Global Leadership accepts that some product and service localization is necessary to leverage the Hang Seng brand effectively.
- 2. Hang Seng Domestic Leadership accepts the need for platform and back-office standardization to achieve critical cost synergies.
- 3. Both parties agree to cede final decision-making authority on integration disputes to the IMO.

This equilibrium maximizes the collective payoff. It allows the integrated bank to leverage HSBC's global scale and Hang Seng's local strength, creating a formidable force that can effectively pursue growth strategies and defend against external threats from competitors and regulators.

14. Strategic Thoughts & Future Outlook

To successfully navigate the post-privatization landscape and maximize value creation, HSBC should prioritize the following strategic actions:

- 1. **Establish a Dedicated Integration Management Office (IMO):** Immediately form a cross-functional team with senior leadership from both HSBC and Hang Seng. The IMO's mandate will be to develop a detailed integration roadmap, manage cultural alignment, track synergy realization against clear KPIs, and resolve inevitable conflicts.
- 2. **Formalize the Dual-Brand Charter:** Develop and communicate a clear charter that defines the distinct target customer segments, value propositions, and product focuses for the HSBC and Hang Seng brands. This will prevent internal cannibalization and ensure marketing efforts are complementary.
- 3. Launch a Proactive Stakeholder Communication Plan: Implement a comprehensive communication strategy targeting key stakeholders. For customers, this means reassuring them of service continuity. For employees, it involves being transparent about organizational changes and career paths. For regulators, it requires proactive engagement to address concerns about market concentration.
- 4. **Prioritize a Unified Technology Roadmap:** The long-term success of the integration hinges on technology. A top priority should be designing a unified IT and data architecture. This will enable seamless customer experiences, unlock data analytics capabilities, and drive significant long-term cost efficiencies.
- 5. Implement a Robust Talent Retention Program: Identify and secure key talent within Hang Seng Bank, particularly those with deep local market knowledge and critical customer relationships. Offer clear incentives and career development paths within the larger HSBC Group to prevent a talent drain to competitors during the transition period.